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Vast Therapeutics, Inc
615 Davis Dr. Suite 800
Morrisville, NC 27560
www.vasttherapeutics.com

Up to $1,235,000.00 in Series B Preferred Stock at $1.04
Minimum Target Amount: $123,999.20

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this offering unless you can afford to lose yvour
entire investment.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the issuer and the terms of the offering,
including the merits and risks involved. These securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state
securities commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have not passed upon the accuracy or
adequacy of this document.

The U.5. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any securities offered or the terms of the
offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or completeness of any offering document or literature.

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.5. Securities and Exchange Commission
has not made an independent determination that these securities are exempt from registration.

In the event that we become a reporting company under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, we intend to take advantage of
the provisions that relate to "Emerging Growth Companies” under the JOBS Act of 2012, including electing to delay
compliance with certain new and revised accounting standards under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,



Company:

Company: Vast Therapeutics, Inc

Address: 615 Davis Dr. Suite 800, Morrisville, NC 27560
state of Incorporation: DE

Date Incorporated: April 05, 2017

Terms:

Equity

Offering Minimum: $123,999.20 | 119,230 shares of Series B Preferred Stock
Offering Maximum: $1,235,000.00 | 1,187,500 shares of Series B Preferred Stock
Type of Security Offered: Series B Preferred Stock

Purchase Price of Security Offered: £1.04

Minimum Investment Amount (per investor): 5468.00

Investment Incentives

Lovalty Bonus | 20% Bonus Shares

As yvou are a valued stakeholder in KNOW Bio, LLC or a designated friend/family member of the Vast Therapeutics team, you
are eligible for 20% additional bonus shares on top of your investment.

Time-Based Perks

Early Bird 1

Invest £5,000+ within the first week and receive 5% bonus shares,
Early Bird 2

Invest $10.000+ within the first week and receive 10% bonus shares.
Early Bird 3

Invest $15,000+ within the first month and receive 10% bonus shares.
Early Bird 4

Invest 50,000+ within the first month and receive 15% bonus shares.

Amount-Based Perks

Tier 1

Invest $1,000 and be eligible to receive a quarterly newsletter from the CEO tailored to the StartEngine shareholder base
and 3% bonus shares

Tier 2

Invest $25,000 and receive a private virtual Q&A with the CEO and 10% bonus shares
Tier 3

Invest $100,000 and receive a VIP invitation for an onsite tour of the research lab, lunch and Q& A with the Vast
management team, and 15% bonus shares.

The 10% StartEngine Venture Club Bonus

Vast Therapeutics, Inc. will offer 10% additional bonus shares for all investments that are committed by investors that are
eligible for the StartEngine Venture Club,

This means eligible StartEngine shareholders will receive a 10% bonus for any shares they purchase in this offering. For
example, if you buy 100 shares of Series B Preferred Stock at $1.04/ share, vou will receive 110 shares of Series B Preferred
Stock, meaning you'll own 110 shares for $104. Fractional shares will not be distributed and share bonuses will be
determined by rounding down to the nearest whole share.

This 10% Bonus is only valid during the investor's eligibility period. Investors eligible for this bonus will also have priority if
they are on a waitlist to invest and the company surpasses its maximum funding goal. They will have the first opportunity to
invest should room in the offering become available if prior investments are canceled or fail.



Investors will receive the highest single bonus they are eligible for among the bonuses based on the amount invested and
the time of offering elapsed (if any). Eligible investors will also receive the Venture Club bonus|,]/[[and] the Loyalty
Bonus[,]/[and the Audience Bonus]] in addition to the aforementioned bonus.

The Company and its Business

Company Overview

Vast Therapeutics, Inc. (“Vast” or Company) is a clinical-stage life science company focused on breaking the debilitating
cycle of chronic infection and inflammation in respiratory diseases. This underlying problem creates a significant health
issue that affects patients across the entire spectrum of respiratory diseases in the US and abroad. 500 million individuals
worldwide suffer from chronic lung disease.

Specific disease names range from rare orphan diseases like Cystic Fibrosis (CF, -40,000 affected in the U.5.) to highly
prevalent Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease in elderly adults (COPD, ~16,000,000 affected in the U.5.). Regardless of
the number impacted, each disease creates a life changing burden of care for the patients and their families.

While there are several respiratory diseases with high unmet medical need, the initial efforts at Vast are concentrated on
population segments whose lungs are colonized with the life-threatening bacteria Pseudomonas aeruginosa
(“Pseudomonas™). It is now well established that when Cystic Fibrosis and Non-Cystic Fibrosis Bronchiectasis ("NCFB™),
patients are colonized with Pseudomonas, it leads to higher rates of hospitalization and mortality. Cough, excessive
sputum, and difficulty breathing become part of everyday life, leading to exacerbations, chronic airflow obstruction, and
progressive loss of lung function.

The heavy use of antibiotics to treat these diseases had led to toxicities observed with chronic use and antibiotic resistance
(further complicating effective treatment). Now bacteria are evolving defense mechanisms against the most powerful drugs,
creating a global public health problem. This is such a significant health issue that the CDC and the WHO have identified
this as a priority. A recent study suggests more than 39 million people could die over the next 25 years due to antibiotic-
resistant infections.

These problems create high unmet medical need and an opportunity to improve and extend life for thousands of people
living with antibiotic resistant pathogens like Pseudomonas. Within CF, Pseudomonas remains a significant challenge to
those adult patients who were not fortunate enough to get modulators at a young age and for those ~10% of individuals with
genetics that make them ineligible for corrective therapy.

WVast has a new solution.

Nitric oxide-based medicines have the potential to reshape the standard of care in the treatment of chronic lung diseases.
Nitric oxide is a natural molecule synthesized by the body that maintains homeostasis of blood flow, neurotransmission,
and immune response. In many respiratory diseases, the ability to make enough nitric oxide is compromised. This leads to
failures in the lungs' ahility to transport oxyeen, keep inflammation in check, and fight off invading pathogens.

Our technology platform is designed to stabilize nitric oxide, deliver it via inhalation, and target the release in the lung
where patients need it the most, aiming to address the complex mosaic of factors that lead to a decline in quality of life.

Our Nitric Oxide Platform

Our nitric oxide-releasing medicines are ideal for disrupting the unending cycle of infection/inflammation caused by
Pseudomonas in CF, NCFB, and COPD, totaling a $5.5B target market opportunity in the U.5. To reach these patients, our
pipeline includes candidates designed to deliver broad-spectrum antimicrobial activity with minimal toxicity and no risk of
emerging drug resistance. The resulting patent portfolio we have assembled is comprised of assets developed internally as
well as key licensed patents and applications in the field of nitric oxide.

Nitric oxide is one of the most researched molecules in human physiology. As a fundamental part of host” immune
response, cells of the immune system naturally generate nitric oxide to kill bacteria, fungi, and viruses. Due to the multiple
ways nitric oxide kills bacteria they do not develop resistance like they do to traditional antibiotics.

While the powerful benefits of nitric oxide have long been recognized, there is a scarcity of nitric oxide-based medicines on
the market due to the challenges associated with controlling the release and delivery of nitric oxide because it is a gas in its
natural state. Early data indicates the following key components of our nitric oxide chemistry platform pioneered by
Founder, Dr. Mark Schoenfisch (UNC-Chapel Hill) overcome these limitations:

Our proprietary chemistry enables us to chemically store large amounts of nitric oxide in drug form. The advantages of our
approach include stability, high storage capacity, targeted delivery, and what we believe is an attractive safety profile.

Our inhalation science allows us to customize the drug delivery method for the relevant sites within the lung while
considering physician and patient preferences. The ability to create inhalable compositions for nebulization or future dry
powder dosage forms allows for the creation of differentiated, first-in-class product candidates.



ALX1 Drug Candidate

There is a high need for effective new treatments to eradicate Pseudomonas and other drug-resistant bacteria in an effort to
combat the global public health threat of antibiotic resistance. Based on superior efficacy compared to tobramyein in
animal models, we believe our lead product candidate, known as ALX1, has the potential to eliminate Pseudomonas in the
lungs of patients and also target the unchecked inflammation that occurs in many chronic lung diseases.

ALX1 is ready for Phase 1 clinical trials:

Quality manufacturing at kilogram scale with >98% purity

Full Phase 1 enabling toxicology program

Efficacy in five preclinical models of chronic airway disease
Approved Investigational New Drug (IND) application with the FDA

If successful, ALX1 may eventually become part of the standard-of-care treatment regimen in many airway diseases. Our
clinical plan is to first establish safety in adult healthy volunteers through the conduct of single and multiple ascending
dose studies. Completion of Phase 1 in healthy volunteers then enables Phase 2 proof-of-concept testing in patients with
specific diseases in the broader population with significant commercial upside.

Future Growth Opportunities

Enabled by what we learn in the clinical trials with CF and NCFB patients, we plan to pursue additional respiratory diseases.
These applications could include but are not limited to the treatment of Non-Tuberculous Mycobacterium (NTM)
infections, as well as bigger diseases like COPD (the 3rd leading cause of death in the U.5.). Given the size of the unmet
need remaining in these populations coupled with the existing network of non-profit organizations supporting clinical
research and development in these disease areas, there are significant non-dilutive, revenue-generating partnership
opportunities. Exemplary organizations identified for potential collaboration include:

Cystic Fibrosis Foundation (CFF)

COPD Foundation

MNational Institutes for Allergy and Infectious Diseases (NIALD)
Biomedical Advanced Research and Development Authority (BARDA)
Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation

The potential revenue from target markets, assuming the full benefits of nitric oxide are fully developed, is impressive. We
are committed to meeting our corporate objectives of delivering commercially viable treatments to patients in a number of
indications and geographies.

Vast engages in research and development activities towards new medicines that require U.5. Food and Drug Administration
(FDA) or similar regulatory bodies internationally, prior to the launch of any new therapeutics. All of our products will
require extensive nonclinical and clinical testing in human subjects to providence evidence of safety and efficacy for their
intended use in specific populations, Highly regulated pharmaceutical development is a capital intensive business and will
require future financings to maximize the value of our assets for shareholders.

The returns for early stage investors in Vast will be a direct outcome of the increase in company valuation that occurs as the
drug candidates successfully complete each development hurdle and advance closer in time to commercial launch. With
each success, the assets are further de-risked with increasing value.

Companies like Vast, have two main paths for investors to potentially realize a return on their investment. One, is through
accessing the capital markets via an initial public offering to become a NADSAQ or NYSE listed company. In this route,
liguidity is provided to investors through the sale of their public stock on the open market. Given the capital required to
advance ALX1 in development toward a monetization event, Vast leadership is preparing the company to one day operate as
a publicly traded organization.

The second, requires licensure or sale of one or more company assets, including the entirety of the corporation, to a large
pharmaceutical player in the respiratory space. Vast has assembled an intellectual property portfolio exceeding 40 filings of
assets developed internally, and key licensed patents and applications in the field of nitric oxide delivery. A clinical stage
asset with a de-risked safety profile and demonstrate proof-of-concept has partnering potential with a number of global
pharmaceutical entities that have stated strategic interest in the respiratory disease space (e.g., Johnson & Johnson, Grifols,
Boehringer Ingelheim, Chiesi, Shionogi). As development progresses, Vast will look to partner with one of these major
plavers to execute late-stage clinical development and fulfill the commercial vision for our ALX1 program or alternatively
advance drug candidates in lung diseases outside of its current focus.



WVast Therapeutics is creating patent barriers to market entry and currently owns exclusive licenses for 20 issued patents and
several pending applications covering nitric oxide-releasing technologies for use in the respiratory field. Vast believes it has
freedom to operate with our ALX1 development program. Vast's nitric oxide-releasing prodrug platform and our lead
candidate ALX1 are protected by a global patent portfolio including filings of assets developed internally, and key licensed
patents and applications in the field of nitric oxide delivery from the UNC-Chapel Hill. The expanding portfolio
summarized in the table below includes patents and applications for compositions of matter as well as methods of use. The
patent portfolio has been designed to support the business model and enable potential commercialization by licensing
ALX1 in targeted areas including licensed fields based on geography, pathogen, or disease state.

Competitors and Industry

Given the size of the unmet need and number of patients requiring therapy, the respiratory therapeutics industry is led by
major pharmaceutical companies including Johnson & Johnson (JN]), Amgen (AMGN), AstraZeneca (AZN), Bristol-Myers
Squibb (BMY), Roche Holding AG (RHHBY), Novartis (NVS), and Vertex Pharmaceuticals (VRTX). These organizations have
the global operations infrastructure to successfully market and sell innovative medicines in the U.5. and major international
markets. All of these large cap companies have company values north of $100 Billion and depend on smaller companies like
Vast to develop innovative medicines which can be acquired to replenish their pipelines. The companies in the respiratory
space are very acquisitive, routinely culminating transactions north of $1B for assets that have completed Phase 2
development and are still years away from generating revenue post regulatory approval.

Competitors:

Insmed Inc. - brensocatib

Verona Pharma - ensifentrine

Zambon Pharma - colistimethate sodium

Our nitric oxide approach is a potential first-in-class therapy. When we dose our first patient in the Phase 1 clinical trial,
Vast Therapeutics will be the first company to advance a stabilized nitric oxide-releasing prodrug for inhalation in a human.
We have overcome the chemistry and engineering obstacles to store nitric oxide gas in liquid form, and now are positioned
to target its delivery effectively to the airways surface of the lungs. Derived from the human body, we know nitric oxide can
exert its intended biological activity if targeted appropriately. Our team's goal is to deliver the right amounts, at the right
time, and in the right place for optimal therapeutic benefit. Further clinical validation of our approach is required.

The advantages of using nitric oxide to combat chronic lung disease include:

Dual mechanism of action - anti-inflammatory and antimicrobial effects in one molecule

Direct and indirect activity on bacteria embedded in microbial biofilms

Kills bacteria with no emergence of antibiotic resistance

To date, nonclinical studies show a potential enhanced safety profile compared to current antibiotics and corticosteroids

Our drug could be used continuously for long periods of time, not requiring the "on-off” cycling of required by some current
treatments that have systemic toxicities or concerns of resistance.

Naturally-derived activity of nitric oxide may be beneficial in a number of chronic lung diseases. This ALX1 candidate has
the potential to help a myriad of diseases and has future sales potential in multiple markets. We are not restricted to a
single disease with a single target. The breadth of patients that we can treat create is truly vast.

Current Stage and Roadmap

The U.5. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) has reviewed our investigational new drug (IND) application and has
approved the ALX1 drug candidate for testing in human subjects. The IND comprises years of research and development
activities including the chemistry, manufacturing, and control information to reproducibly manufacture the new drug. Our
nonclinical program demonstrates the safety and efficacy of the drug candidate in representative animal models which have
been utilized to predict the ranges of doses that project to be safe and potentially effective at reducing pathogenic bacteria
and inflammation in humans.

Vast plans to complete Phase 1 human clinical trials in the 1H of 2025. That trial will take approximately 6 months with
data on the safety, tolerability, and systemic distribution of the drug being available in the 2H 2025. Subject to the
availability of future financing, Vast would next initiate Phase 2 clinical development in the 2H of 2025 with one or more
small proof-of-concept trials that answer the fundamental question "Does it work in a human?® These trials will be
targeting key markers of disease and will help determine the appropriate patient populations for use in late stage trials.
Clinical data readouts could be available as early as 2026.

The Team



Officers and Directors

MName: Nate Stasko, PhD
Nate Stasko, PhD's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

& Position: Chief Executive Officer, Director
Dates of Service: April, 2022 - Present
Responsibilities: T oversee all of the product development disciplines responsible for pursuing registration of company
products with the U.5. Food and Drug Administration (FDA). I am also responsible for the overall business direction
and financial viability of the organization. Nate currently receives annual salary compensation of $360,000 for this
role.

Other business experience in the past three years:

* Emplover: KNOW Bio
Title: Senior Strategic Advisor
Dates of Service: March, 2019 - Present
Responsibilities: Senior Strategic Advisor

Other business experience in the past three years:

* Emplover: EmitBio, Inc.
Title: Chief Scientific Officer
Dates of Service: April, 2020 - February, 2022
Responsibilities: Chief Scientific Officer

Name: Charles Swoboda

Charles Swoboda's current primary role is with KnowBIO LLC. Charles Swoboda currently services 8 hours per week in their
role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

= Position: Executive Chairman
Dates of Service: January, 2021 - Present
Responsibilities: Lead the board, provide strategic guidance, risk management oversight. Charles receives salary
compensation of $5,000 per year for this role.

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Emplover: KnowBIO LLC
Title: Board Member
Dates of Service: November, 2022 - Present
Responsibilities: Board Member

Other business experience in the past three vears:

o Emplover: Ryder
Title: Director
Dates of Service: November, 2022 - Present
Responsibilities: Director

Name: George Stephen DeCherney

George Stephen DeCherney's current primary role is with UNC School of Medicine. George Stephen DeCherney currently
services 1 hours per week in their role with the Issuer,

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

= Position: Director
Dates of Service: August, 2018 - Present



Responsibilities: Attend Board meetings. Advise on medical matters. Dr. DeCherny does not currently receive salary
compensation for this role.

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Emplover: Aisling Health Services
Title: Board Chair

Dates of Service: May, 2024 - Present
Responsibilities: Co-Founder

Other business experience in the past three years:

= Emplover: Helios Clinical Research
Title: Chair
Dates of Service: May, 2021 - Present
Responsibilities: Co-Founder

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Emplovyer: UNC School of Medicine
Title: Professor
Dates of Service: September, 2009 - Present
Responsibilities: Faculty

Name: John Oakley

John Oakley's current primary role is with KNOW Bio LLC. John Oakley currently services 15 hours per week in their role
with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

= Position: Chief Financial Officer
Dates of Service: July, 2017 - Present
Responsibilities: Responsible for accounting, treasury and tax efforts at Vast Therapeutics. John does not currently
receive salary compensation for this role.

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Emplover: KNOW Bio LLC
Title: COO, CFO
Dates of Service: February, 2018 - Present
Responsibilities: Lead the Company in all aspects.

Other business experience in the past three years:

* Emplover: Revian, inc.
Title: CEO
Dates of Service: December, 2022 - Present
Responsibilities: Lead the Company in all aspects

Name: Mark Schoenfisch

Mark Schoenfisch's current primary role is with KnowBIO, LLC. Mark Schoenfisch currently services 8 hours per week in
their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

* Position: Director & Chief Scientific Officer
Dates of Service: January, 2017 - Present
Responsibilities: As Professor of Chemistry at UNC-Chapel Hill and Founder of Vast, | have served to transfer
technology and [P originating from my academic laboratory at the University of North Carolina to the company. Mark
currently receives annual salary compensation of $120,000 for this role.



Other business experience in the past three vears:

* Emplovyer: KnowBIO, LLC
Title: Director
Dates of Service: September, 2016 - Present
Responsibilities: I also serve as Director of Vast's parent company, KNOW Bio, LLC.

Name: Paul Bruinenberg
Paul Bruinenberg's current primary role is with the [ssuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

# Position: Chief Medical Officer (CMO)
Dates of Service: March, 2024 - Present
Responsibilities: Responsible for defining the clinical development strategy, expediting the development compounds
and overseeing the implementation of clinical studies that could change the overall paradigm of treating chronic
inflammatory lung diseases from all phases of development (discovery, non-clinical and Phase I-1V). My
responsibilities include but are not limited to clinical strategy, protocol development, study conduct and interaction
with regulatory authorities. Paul currently receives salary compensation in the amount of $300,000 per year for this
role.

Other business experience in the past three years:

* Employer: TB Alliance
Title: Senior Medical Officer
Dates of Service: March, 2017 - July, 2023
Responsibilities: Responsible for expediting the development compounds and overseeing the implementation of
clinical studies that could change the overall paradigm of treating Tuberculosis lung diseases from all phases of
development (discovery, non-clinical and Phase I-1V). My responsibilities include but are not limited to clinical
strategy, protocol development, study conduct and interaction with regulatory authorities.

Risk Factors

The SEC requires the company to identify risks that are specific to its business and its financial condition. The company is
still subject to all the same risks that all companies in its business, and all companies in the economy, are exposed to. These
include risks relating to economic downturns, political and economic events and technological developments (such as
hacking and the ability to prevent hacking). Additionally, early-stage companies are inherently more risky than more
developed companies. You should consider general risks as well as specific risks when deciding whether to invest.

These are the risks that relate to the Company:

Uncertain Risk

An investment in the Company (also referred to as “we”, "us”, “our”, or the "Company™) involves a high degree of risk and
should only be considered by those who can afford the loss of their entire investment. Furthermore, the purchase of any
securities should only be undertaken by persons whose financial resources are sufficient to enable them to indefinitely
retain an illiquid investment. Each investor in the Company should research thoroughly any offering before making an
investment decision and consider all of the information provided regarding the Company as well as the following risk
factors, in addition to the other information in the Company’s Form C. The following risk factors are not intended, and shall
not be deemed to be, a complete description of the commercial, financial, and other risks inherent in the investment in the
Company.

Our business projections are only projections

There can be no assurance that the Company will meet its projections. There can be no assurance that the Company will be
able to find sufficient demand for its product or service, that people think it’s a better option than a competing product or
service, or that we will be able to provide a product or service at a level that allows the Company to generate revenue, make
a profit, or grow the business.

Any valuation is difficult to assess

The valuation for the offering was established by the Company. Unlike listed companies that are independently valued
through market-driven stock prices, the valuation of private companies, especially startups, is difficult to assess, may not be
exact, and you may risk overpaying for your investment.



The transferability of the Securities you are buying is limited

You should be prepared to hold this investment for several years or longer. For the 12 months following your investment,
there will be restrictions on the securities you purchase. More importantly, there are a limited number of established
markets for the resale of these securities. As a result, if vou decide to sell these securities in the future, you may not be able
to find, or may have difficulty finding, a buyer, and you may have to locate an interested buyer when you do seek to resell
your investment. The Company may be acquired by an existing player in the industry. However, that may never happen or it
may happen at a price that results in you losing money on this investment.

The Company may undergo a future change that could affect your investment

The Company may change its business, management or advisory team, [P portfolio, location of its principal place of
business or production facilities, or other change which may result in adverse effects on vour investment. Additionally, the
Company may alter its corporate structure through a merger, acquisition, consolidation, or other restructuring of its current
corporate entity structure. Should such a future change occur, it would be based on management’s review and
determination that it is in the best interests of the Company.

Your information rights are limited with limited post-closing disclosures

The Company is required to disclose certain information about the Company, its business plan, and its anticipated use of
proceeds, among other things, in this offering. Early-stage companies may be able to provide only limited information
about their business plan and operations because it does not have fully developed operations or a long history to provide
more disclosure. The Company is also only obligated to file information annually regarding its business, including financial
statements. In contrast to publicly listed companies, investors will be entitled only to that post-offering information that is
required to be disclosed to them pursuant to applicable law or regulation, including Regulation CF. Such disclosure
generally requires only that the Company issue an annual report via a Form C-AR. Investors are generally not entitled to
interim updates or financial information.

If the Company cannot raise sufficient funds it will not succeed

The Company is offering Preferred Stock in the amount of up to $1,235,000 in this offering, and may close on any
investments that are made. Even if the maximum amount is raised, the Company is likely to need additional funds in the
future in order to grow, and if it cannot raise those funds for whatever reason, including reasons relating to the Company
itself or the broader economy, it may not survive. If the Company manages to raise only the minimum amount of funds
sought, it will have to find other sources of funding for some of the plans outlined in “Use of Proceeds.”

Terms of subsequent financings may adversely impact your investment

We will likely need to engage in common equity, debt, or preferred stock financings in the future, which may reduce the
value of your investment in the Company. Interest on debt securities could increase costs and negatively impact operating
results. Preferred stock could be issued in series from time to time with such designation, rights, preferences, and
limitations as needed to raise capital. The terms of preferred stock could be more advantageous to those investors than to
the holders of common stock or other securities. In addition, if we need to raise more equity capital from the sale of
Common Stock, institutional or other investors may negotiate terms that are likely to be more favorable than the terms of
your investment, and possibly a lower purchase price per security.,

Management's Discretion as to Use of Proceeds

Our success will be substantially dependent upon the discretion and judgment of our management team with respect to the
application and allocation of the proceeds of this offering. The Use of Proceeds described below is an estimate based on our
current business plan. We, however, may find it necessary or advisable to re-allocate portions of the net proceeds reserved
for one category to another, and we will have broad discretion in doing so.

Projections: Forward Looking Information

Any projections or forward-looking statements regarding our anticipated financial or operational performance are
hypothetical and are based on management’s best estimate of the probable results of our operations and may not have been
reviewed by our independent accountants. These projections are based on assumptions that management believes are
reasonable. Some assumptions invariably will not materialize due to unanticipated events and circumstances beyond
management's control. Therefore, actual results of operations will vary from such projections, and such variances may be
material. Any projected results cannot be guaranteed.

The amount raised in this offering may include investments from company insiders or immediate family members
Officers, directors, executives, and existing owners with a controlling stake in the Company (or their immediate family
members) may make investments in this offering. Any such investments will be included in the raised amount reflected on
the campaign page.

We may never have an operational product or service

It is possible that there may never be an operational product or that the product may never be used to engage in
transactions. It is possible that the failure to release the product or service is the result of a change in business model upon
the Company’s making a determination that the business model, or some other factor, will not be in the best interest of the
Company. In addition, the failure to launch a product or service can result in significant losses of time and resources. Even
if a product or service is launched, low adoption rates can result in lackluster revenue and diminished market share.



Developing new products and technologies entails significant risks and uncertainties

Competition can be intense in many markets, and a failure to keep up with competitors or anticipate shifts in market
dynamics can lead to revenue declines or market share losses. We are currently in the research and development stage and
have only manufactured a prototype for our product. Delays or cost overruns in the development of our product and failure
of the product to meet our performance estimates may be caused by, among other things, unanticipated technological
hurdles, difficulties in manufacturing, changes to design, and regulatory hurdles. Any of these events could materially and
adversely affect our operating performance and results of operations.

Minority Holder; Securities with No Voting Rights

The Series B Preferred Stock that an investor is buying has no voting rights attached to them. This means that you will have
no rights in dictating how the Company will be run. You are trusting in management's discretion in making good business
decisions that will grow your investments. Furthermore, in the event of a liquidation of our company, you will only be paid
out if there is any cash remaining after all of the creditors of our company have been paid out.

You are trusting that management will make the best decision for the company
You are trusting in management's discretion. You are buying securities as a minority holder and therefore must trust the
management of the Company to make good business decisions that grow your investment.

Insufficient Funds

The Company might not sell enough securities in this offering to meet its operating needs and fulfill its plans, in which case
it may cease operating and result in a loss on your investment. Even if we sell all the Preferred Stock we are offering now,
the Company may need to raise more funds in the future, and if unsuccessful in doing so, the Company will fail. Even if we
do make a successful offering in the future, the terms of that offering might result in your investment in the Company being
worth less, if later investors have better terms than those in this offering.

This offering involves “rolling closings,” which may mean that earlier investors may not have the benefit of information
that later investors have.

Once we meet our target amount for this offering, we may request that StartEngine instruct the escrow agent to disburse
offering funds to us. At that point, investors whose subscription agreements have been accepted will become our investors.
All early-stage companies are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, and it is not uncommeon for material changes
to be made to the offering terms, or to companies’ businesses, plans, or prospects, sometimes with little or no notice. When
such changes happen during the course of an offering, we must file an amendment to our Form C with the SEC, and
investors whose subscriptions have not yet been accepted will have the right to withdraw their subscriptions and get their
money back. Investors whose subscriptions have already been accepted, however, will already be our investors and will have
no such right.

Non-accredited investors may not be eligible to participate in a future merger or acquisition of the Company and may lose a
portion of their investment

Investors should be aware that under Rule 145 under the Securities Act of 1933 if they invest in a company through
Regulation CrowdFunding and that company becomes involved in a merger or acquisition, there may be significant
regulatory implications. Under Rule 145, when a company plans to acquire another and offers its shares as part of the deal,
the transaction may be deemed an offer of securities to the target company's investors, because investors who can vote (or
for whom a proxy is voting on their behalf) are making an investment decision regarding the securities they would receive.
All investors, even those with non-voting shares, may have rights with respect to the merger depending on relevant state
laws. This means the acquirer’s “offer” to the target’s investors would require registration or an exemption from
registration (such as Reg. D or Reg, CF), the burden of which can be substantial, As a result, non-accredited investors may
have their shares repurchased rather than receiving shares in the acquiring company or participating in the acquisition.
This may result in investors® shares being repurchased at a value determined by a third party, which may be at a lesser value
than the original purchase price. Investors should consider the possibility of a cash buyout in such circumstances, which
may not be commensurate with the long-term investment they anticipate.

We face significant market competition

We will compete with larger, established companies that currently have products on the market and/or various respective
product development programs. They mav have much better financial means and marketing/sales and human resources
than us. They may succeed in developing and marketing competing equivalent products earlier than us, or superior products
than those developed by us. There can be no assurance that competitors will not render our technology or products obsolete
or that the products developed by us will be preferred to any existing or newly developed technologies. It should further be
assumed that competition will intensify.

Vulnerability to Economic Conditions

Economic conditions, both globally and within specific markets, can significantly influence the success of early-stage
startups. Downturns or recessions may lead to reduced consumer spending, limited access to capital, and decreased demand
for the company's products or services. Additionally, factors such as inflation, interest rates, and exchange rate fluctuations
can affect the cost of raw materials, operational expenses, and profitability, potentially impacting the company’s ability to
operate.

We have existing patents that we might not be able to protect properly



One of the Company’s most valuable assets is its intellectual property. The Company’s owns trademarks, copyrights,
Internet domain names, and trade secrets. We believe one of the most valuable components of the Company is our
intellectual property portfolio, Due to the value, competitors may misappropriate or violate the rights owned by the
Company. The Company intends to continue to protect its intellectual property portfolio from such violations. It is
important to note that unforeseeable costs associated with such practices may invade the capital of the Company.

Our trademarks, copyrights and other intellectual property could be unenforceable or ineffective

Intellectual property is a complex field of law in which few things are certain. It is possible that competitors will be able to
design around our intellectual property, find prior art to invalidate it, or render the patents unenforceable through some
other mechanism. If competitors are able to bypass our trademark and copyright protection without obtaining a sublicense,
it is likely that the Company’s value will be materially and adversely impacted. This could also impair the Company’s ability
to compete in the marketplace. Moreover, if our trademarks and copyrights are deemed unenforceable, the Company will
almost certainly lose any potential revenue it might be able to raise by entering into sublicenses. This would cut off a
significant potential revenue stream for the Company.

The loss of one or more of our key personnel, or our failure to attract and retain other highly qualified personnel in the
future, could harm our business

Our business depends on our ability to attract, retain, and develop highly skilled and qualified employees. As we grow, we
will need to continue to attract and hire additional employees in various areas, including sales, marketing, design,
development, operations, finance, legal, and human resources. However, we may face competition for qualified candidates,
and we cannot guarantee that we will be successful in recruiting or retaining suitable employees. Additionally, if we make
hiring mistakes or fail to develop and train our emplovees adequately, it could have a negative impact on our business,
financial condition, or operating results. We may also need to compete with other companies in our industry for highly
skilled and qualified employees. If we are unable to attract and retain the right talent, it may impact our ability to execute
our business plan successfully, which could adversely affect the value of your investment. Furthermore, the economic
environment may affect our ability to hire qualified candidates, and we cannot predict whether we will be able to find the
right employees when we need them. This would likely adversely impact the value of vour investment.

Our ability to sell our product or service is dependent on outside government regulation which can be subject to change at
any time

Our ability to sell our products is subject to various government regulations, including but not limited to, regulations
related to the manufacturing, labeling, distribution, and sale of our products. Changes in these regulations, or the
enactment of new regulations, could impact our ability to sell our products or increase our compliance costs. Furthermore,
the regulatory landscape is subject to regular change, and we may face challenges in adapting to such changes, which could
adversely affect our business, financial condition, or operating results. In addition to government regulations, we may also
be subject to other laws and regulations related to our products, including intellectual property laws, data privacy laws, and
consumer protection laws. Non-compliance with these laws and regulations could result in legal and financial liabilities,
reputational damage, and regulatory fines and penalties. It is also possible that changes in public perception or cultural
norms regarding our products may impact demand for our products, which could adversely affect our business and financial
performance, which may adversely affect yvour investment.

We rely on third parties to provide services essential to the success of our business

Our business relies on a variety of third-party vendors and service providers, including but not limited to manufacturers,
shippers, accountants, lawyers, public relations firms, advertisers, retailers, and distributors. Our ability to maintain high-
quality operations and services depends on these third-party vendors and service providers, and any failure or delay in their
performance could have a material adverse effect on our business, tinancial condition, and operating results. We may have
limited control over the actions of these third-party vendors and service providers, and they may be subject to their own
operational, financial, and reputational risks. We may also be subject to contractual or legal limitations in our ability to
terminate relationships with these vendors or service providers or seek legal recourse for their actions. Additionally, we may
face challenges in finding suitable replacements for these vendors and service providers, which could cause delays or
disruptions to our operations. The loss of key or other critical vendors and service providers could materially and adversely
affect our business, financial condition, and operating results, and as a result, your investment could be adversely impacted
by our reliance on these third-party vendors and service providers.

Economic and market conditions

The Company’s business may be affected by economic and market conditions, including changes in interest rates, inflation,
consumer demand, and competition, which could adversely affect the Company's business, financial condition, and
operating results.

Force majeure events

The Company's operations may be affected by force majeure events, such as natural disasters, pandemics, acts of terrorism,
war, or other unforeseeable events, which could disrupt the Company's business and operations and adversely affect its
financial condition and operating results.

Projections: Forward-Looking Information
Any projections or forward-looking statements regarding our anticipated financial or operational performance are



hypothetical and are based on management’s best estimate of the probable results of our operations and may not have been
reviewed by our independent accountants. These projections are based on assumptions that management believes are
reasonable. Some assumptions invariably will not materialize due to unanticipated events and circumstances beyond
management's control. Therefore, actual results of operations will vary from such projections, and such variances may be
material. Any projected results cannot be guaranteed.

We are an early-stage company and have not yet generated any profits

Vast Therapeutics, Inc. was formed on 04 05, 2017. Accordingly, the Company has a limited history upon which an
evaluation of its performance and future prospects can be made. Our current and proposed operations are subject to all
business risks associated with new enterprises. These include likely fluctuations in operating results as the Company reacts
to developments in its market, managing its growth, and the entry of competitors into the market. We will only be able to
pay dividends on any shares once our directors determine that we are financially able to do so0. Vast Therapeutics, Inc. has
incurred a net loss and has had limited revenues generated since inception, if any. There is no assurance that we will be
profitable in the near future or generate sufficient revenues to pay dividends to our shareholders.

Insufficient Funds

The Company might not sell enough securities in this offering to meet its operating needs and fulfill its plans, in which case
it may cease operating and result in a loss on your investment. Even if we sell all the Preferred Stock we are offering now,
the Company may need to raise more funds in the future, and if unsuccessful in doing so, the Company will fail. Even if we
do make a successful offering in the future, the terms of that offering might result in your investment in the Company being
worth less, if later investors have better terms than those in this offering.

Risks of Drug Development

Drug development is a highly regulated, lengthy, expensive process with an uncertain outcome, and results of earlier
studies might not be predictive of future trial results. Our product candidates may pose safety issues, cause adverse events,
have side effects, or have other properties that could delay or prevent their clearance of regulatory hurdles and ultimate
approval, limit the commercial profile of an approved label, or result in significant negative consequences following
marketing approval, if any.

Product Development Risk
For certain target indications, well-defined clinical and regulatory pathways do not exist, increasing the uncertainty of
achieving marketing authorization for our products in one or more respiratory diseases.

Risks associated with nitric oxide

We specialize in nitric oxide-based product candidates. As such, there are program-specific risks given the nature of our
proprietary approach including: o Nitric oxide gas is a critical raw material used in the synthesis of our drug candidates.
We rely or intend to rely on third parties for the supply of this chemical so, if these third parties do not successfully carry
out their contractual duties or encounter supply chain delays, our development efforts could be stopped, delaved, or made
less profitable; and Our proprietary chemistry requires high-pressure manufacturing of corrosive gases, limiting the number
of commercially-available third parties to make and manufacture our drug candidates at scale, which may result in
additional capital demands, delays as drug development progresses, and/or failure to achieve marketing approval.

Regulatory Risk
For certain target indications, well-defined clinical and regulatory pathways do not exist, increasing the uncertainty of
achieving marketing authorization for our products in one or more respiratory diseases.

Third Party Coverage of Pharmaceuticals
Even if we obtain marketing approval for any product candidates, the products may become subject to unfavorable third-
party coverage or reimbursement policies.

All of our products are still in the prototype phase and might never be operational products

Developing new products and technologies can be a complex process that involves significant risks and uncertainties.
Technical challenges, design flaws, manufacturing defects, and regulatory hurdles can all impact the success of a product or
service. It is possible that there may never be an operational product or that the product may never be used to engage in
transactions. It is possible that the failure to release the product is the result of a change in business model upon the
Company’s making a determination that the business model, or some other factor, will not be in the best interest of the
Company and its stockholders.



Ownership and Capital Structure; Rights of the Securities

Ownership
The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of the company’s holders of 20% or more of any
class of voting securities as of the date of this Offering Statement filing.

Stockholder Name[Number of Securities Owned Type of Security Owned|Percentage
ENOW Bio, LLC 36,132,717 Common Stock 75.4%

The Company's Securities

The Company has authorized Common Stock, Series A Preferred Stock, and Series B Preferred Stock. As part of the
Regulation Crowdfunding raise, the Company will be offering up to 1,187,500 of Series B Preferred Stock.,

Common Stock

The amount of security authorized is 50,000,000 with a total of 45,417,327 outstanding.
Voting Rights

One Vote Per Share
Material Rights

There are no material rights associated with Common Stock.
Series A Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 4,490,000 with a total of 2,515,000 outstanding.
Voting Rights

The holders of Series A Preferred Stock are entitled to vote together with the holders of Common Stock on an as-converted
to Common Stock basis.

Material Rights
There are no material rights associated with Series A Preferred Stock.
Series B Preferred Stock
The amount of security authorized is 6,500,000 with a total of 0 outstanding.
Voting Rights
There are no voting rights associated with Series B Preferred Stock.
Material Rights

There are no material rights associated with Series B Preferred Stock.
What it means to be a minority holder

As a minority holder of Preferred Stock of the Company, you will have limited rights in regard to the corporate actions of
the Company, including additional issuances of securities, company repurchases of securities, a sale of the Company or its
significant assets, or company transactions with related parties. Further, investors in this offering may have rights less than
those of other investors and will have limited influence on the corporate actions of the Company.

Dilution

Investors should understand the potential for dilution. The investor's stake in a company could be diluted due to the
Company issuing additional shares. In other words, when the Company issues more shares, the percentage of the Company
that you own will go down, even though the value of the Company may go up. You will own a smaller piece of a larger
company. This increase in the number of shares outstanding could result from a stock offering (such as an initial public
offering, another crowdfunding round, a venture capital round, or angel investment), emplovees exercising stock options, or
by conversion of certain instruments (e.g. convertible bonds, preferred shares or warrants) into stock. If the Company
decides to issue more shares, an investor could experience value dilution, with each share being worth less than before, and
control dilution, with the total percentage an investor owns being less than before, There may also be earnings dilution,
with a reduction in the amount earned per share (though this typically occurs only if the Company offers dividends, and



most early-stage companies are unlikely to offer dividends, preferring to invest any earnings into the Company).

Transferability of securities

For a yvear, the securities can only be resold:
« Inan PO,
e To the company;
* Toan accredited investor; and

¢ Toa member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust controlled by the purchaser, to a trust created
for the benefit of a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, or in connection with the death or divorce
of the purchaser or other similar circumstance.

Recent Offerings of Securities

We have made the following issuances of securities within the last three vears:

We have NOT made any issuances of securities within the last three vears.

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Financial Condition

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of our operations together with
our financial statements and related notes appearing at the end of this Offering Memorandum. This discussion contains
forward-looking statements reflecting our current expectations that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results and the
timing of events may differ materially from those contained in these forward-looking statements due to a number of factors,
including those discussed in the section entitled "Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Offering Memorandum.

Results of Operations

How long can the business operate without revenue:

Biotechnology companies typically operate 5-10 years before generating revenue from products it develops given the
lengthy drug development process and regulatory hurdles imposed by the Food and Drug Administration (FDA). Our
business model does not rely on revenue generation to fund operations or return value to shareholders. Vast Therapeutics
will use the proceeds from equity transactions (both now and in the future) to advance its programs until a monetization
event; either accessing the public markets or an M&A transaction with large pharma.

Foreseeable major expenses based on projections:

The major expenses for Vast are related to the testing required by the FDA in both humans and animals to demonstrate the
safety and efficacy of our ALX1 drug candidate. The forecasts costs will include the trial costs associated with running
Phase 1, Phase 2, and potentially Phase 3 trials along with the rodent and non-rodent toxicology studies required to enable
the dosing durations of those trials.

Specifically with respect to the Phase 1 milestone, $3M dollars of clinical and nonclinical expense are forecasted to
complete the single ascending dose and multiple ascending dose Phase 1 trial in healthy volunteers as agreed upon by FDA.

Future operational challenges:

Future operational challenges could include scaling the drug candidate for commercial distribution, enrollment and
execution of large multi-national clinical trials, and the reliance on third party contract organizations to complete many
tasks in the product development lifecycle. These and others are appropriately outlines in RISK FACTORS.

Future challenges related to capital resources:

Drug development is a capital-intensive business, requiring increasing amounts of capital the further we advance the ALX1
drug candidate. Future equity financings will be required to maximize value of the asset.

Future milestones and events:

The continued success of our non-dilutive financing efforts will make a significant impact on the future value creation
potential of our Company. Our previous investors recognize these grants as an invaluable component of their investment
thesis. First, federal and state funds extend the capital runway of the organization as a direct offset of critical research and



development activities. Second, the scientific peer review helps non-healthcare specialist investors by having an extra layer
of diligence over both the scientific approach and level of innovation.

Given the size of the unmet need remaining in these disease populations and the existing network of non-profit
organizations supporting clinical research and development in chronic lung diseases, we believe significant non-dilutive
revenue-generating potential relationships also exist. Organizations identified for potential partnership/collaboration
include the Cystic Fibrosis Foundation and the COPD Foundation.

Vast has assembled an intellectual property portfolio exceeding 40 filings of assets developed internally, and key licensed
patents and applications in the field of nitric oxide delivery. Once first-in-human Phase 1 safety studies are complete for
ALX1, a clinical stage asset with a derisked safety profile has immense licensing and partnering potential with a number of
global pharmaceutical entities that have stated strategic interest in the respiratory disease space (e.g., Johnson & Johnson,
Grifols, Boehringer Ingelheim, Shionogi). As development progresses, Vast will look to partner with one of these major
plavers to explore disease bevond our current focus and/or to execute late-stage clinical development and fulfill the
commercial vision for our program.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

What capital resources are currently available to the Company? (Cash on hand, existing lines of credit, shareholder loans,
erc...)

As of June 30, 2024, the remaining amount available under the existing line of credit under the Promissory Note with KNOW
Bio, LLC is greater than $3,000,000.

The Company maintains a minimal cash balance outside of the expenses paid for via the Promissory Note.

Vast has financed its operations for the past several years under this arrangement.

How do the funds of this campaign factor into your financial resources? (Are these funds critical to your company
operations? Or do you have other funds or capital resources available?)

To achieve the drug development objectives toward FDA approval, including the Phase 1 clinical safety program, the funds
from this campaign are critical.

The Company could continue operating using a combination of non-dilutive grant funding and the remaining balance under
the Promissory Note with KNOW Bio, LLC.

Are the funds from this campaign necessary to the viability of the company? (Of the total funds that your company has, how
much of that will be made up of funds raised from the crowdfunding campaign?)

Upon success, the funds from this campaign would comprise virtually all of the cash on hand.

Without the funds from this campaign, the Company could continue operating using a combination of non-dilutive grant
funding and the remaining balance under the Promissory Note with KNOW Bio, LLC.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your minimum? What expenses is this estimate based on?

If raising the minimum threshold, we could potentially operate the company without campaign equity dollars.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your maximum funding goal?

We could potentially operate the company without campaign equity dollars. If raising the maximum threshold, the is
assured of continued operations for approximately the next 12 months with a burn rate of roughly $100,000 per month. This
burn rate consists of payroll and general operating expenses net of any grants and contracts, and does include external
nonclinical and clinical development costs to advance ALX1.

Are there any additional future sources of capital available to yvour company? (Required capital contributions, lines of credit,
contemplated future capital raises, etc...)

The Company may receive additional non-dilutive grant funding (3 pending proposals totaling over $6,000,000 from the
Mational Institutes of Health).

The Company may also sell Common or Preferred Stock in future rounds of financing to advance the ALX1 drug candidate
bevond Phase 1 clinical trials towards a monetization event for stockholders.



Indebtedness

s Creditor: KNOW Bio, LLC
Amount Owed: $11,564,348.78
Interest Rate: 3.0%
Maturity Date: December 31, 2029
Conversion. 1.1 Qualified Financing. In the event of a Qualified Financing, all unpaid principal and accrued
unpaid interest on this Note shall be converted at the Conversion Price (defined below) into the Company’s equity
securities (the “Securities™). Such Securities shall be chosen at Lender’s sole discretion from any Securities issued by
the Company in this Qualified Financing or otherwise. For purposes hereof, a "Qualified Financing”™ means the closing
of an equity financing or series of related equity financings by the Company resulting in aggregate gross cash proceeds
(before commissions or other expenses and excluding conversion of the Note) to the Company of at least Four Million
Nine Hundred Thousand Dollars ($4,900,000.00), and the “Conversion Price” shall be 90% of the lowest price per share
paid for the Securities in the Qualified Financing. In the event the Company completes (in one or a series of related
transactions) a merger, consolidation, sale or transfer of more than fifty percent (50%) of the Company’s capital stock,
or completes the sale of all or substantially all of its assets, in each case which does not constitute a Qualified
Financing, then the term “Securities” as used herein shall thereafter refer to the equity securities or securities
convertible into or exchangeable for equity securities of the surviving, resulting, combined or acquiring entity in such
merger, consolidation, sale or transfer. 1.2 Voluntary Conversion. In the event of an equity financing by the
Company resulting in aggregate gross cash proceeds (before commissions or other expenses and excluding conversion
of the Note) to the Company of less than Four Million Nine Hundred Thousand Dollars ($4,900,000.00), Lender, in its
sole discretion, can have all unpaid principal and accrued unpaid interest on this Note be converted to Securities
chosen at Lender’s sole discretion from any Securities issued by the Company in such equity financing or otherwise at
90% of the lowest price per share paid for the Securities in such an equity financing. In addition to the above, upon
the agreement of the Company and Lender, all or any portion of the unpaid principal and accrued interest under this
Note shall be converted at a conversion price mutually agreeable to the Company and the Lender. Any such
conversion must be approved by the board of directors of the Company or its authorized designee, and Lender may
request a copy of the consent or minutes evidencing the approval of such request as a condition to consummating the
conversion. 1.3 Mechanics of Conversion. Upon conversion of this Note in accordance with the terms of this
Section 3, the Company shall not be obligated to issue certificates evidencing the shares of the securities issuable
upon such conversion unless the Note is either delivered to the Company or its transfer agent, or the Lender notifies
the Company or its transfer agent that such Note has been lost, stolen or destroyed and executes an agreement
satisfactory to the Company to indemnify the Company from any loss incurred by it in connection with such Note,
The Company shall, as soon as practicable after such delivery, or such agreement and indemnification, issue and
deliver to Lender a certificate or certificates for the Securities to which Lender shall be entitled. Such conversion shall
be deemed to have been made concurrently with the close of the Qualified Financing. The person or persons entitled
to receive securities issuable upon such conversion shall be treated for all purposes as the record holder or holders of
such securities on such date. The Company shall not issue fractional shares but shall round up the number of shares
issued to the next whole number.

Related Party Transactions
The Company has not conducted any related party transactions

Valuation

Pre-Money Valuation: $49,849,620.08

Valuation Details:

This valuation is based on comparable private and public transactions in the life science sector, The range of corporate
valuations where initial public offerings get completed routinely in pharma/biotech is between $200-250 Million, although
there are always outliers who have successful listings above and below that. This target range is 4-5X the valuation of the
company today and provides a realistic goal for growth in share price over the next 24 - 36 months. Using this target as a
guide, the current valuation was calculated using standard industry step-up multiples and specific deal sizes of future equity
financings. Additionally, we have had a 3rd party market research firm conduct risk-adjusted net present value calculations
for each of our target markets, and the value of the ALX1 drug candidate at its current stage, in just the first indication, is
north of $50M.

Use of Proceeds

[f we raise the Target Offering Amount of $123,999.20 we plan to use these proceeds as follows:



& StartEngine Platform Fees
5.5%

& StartEngine Service Fees
12.0%

Fees for certain creative design, legal, marketing, technical, and administrative support services provided by
StartEngine, of which the final amount may vary.

= Company Employment
82.5%
Baseline operating expense for Vast personnel net of non-dilutive funding sources.

If we raise the over allotment amount of $1,235,000.00, we plan to use these proceeds as follows:

= StartEngine Platform Fees
5.5%

= StartEngine Service Fees
1.0%

Fees for certain creative design, legal, marketing, technical, and administrative support services provided by
StartEngine, of which the final amount may vary.

* Research & Development
45.0%
General working capital.

& Working Capital
9.5%
eneral working capital.

* Company Employment
39.0%
Baseline operating expense for Vast personnel net of non-dilutive funding sources.

The Company may change the intended use of proceeds if our officers believe it is in the best interests of the company.

Regulatory Information

Disqualification

Mo disqualifying event has been recorded in respect to the company or its officers or directors.
Compliance Failure

The company has not previously failed to comply with the requirements of Regulation Crowdfunding.
Ongoing Reporting

The Company will file a report electronically with the SEC annually and post the report on its website no later than April 30
(120 days after Fiscal Year End). Once posted, the annual report may be found on the Company’s website at
www.vasttherapeutics.com (www.vasttherapeutics.com/annualreports).

The Company must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements until:
(1) it is required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act;

(2) it has filed at least one (1) annual report pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding and has fewer than three hundred (300)
holders of record and has total assets that do not exceed $10,000,000;

(%) it has filed at least three (3) annual reports pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding;

{4) it or another party repurchases all of the securities issued in reliance on Section 4{a)(6) of the Securities Act, including
any payment in full of debt securities or any complete redemption of redeemable securities; or

(5) it liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law.

Updates



Updates on the status of this Offering may be found at: www.startengine.com/vast-therapeutics

Investing Process

See Exhibit E to the Offering Statement of which this Offering Memorandum forms a part.
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FINIS

CAPITAL

Certified Public Accountants, Cyber Security, and Governance, Risk & Compliance Professionals

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’'S REVIEW REPORT

To: Vast Therapeutics, Inc. Management

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Vast Therapeutics, Inc. (the Company) which comprise the
balance sheet as of December 31, 2023 & 2022 and the income statement, statements of changes in shareholders’ equity.
and statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. A review includes
primarily applying analytical procedures to management’s financial data and making inquiries of Company management. A
review is substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the
financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements:

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial staterments that are free from
material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Accountant’s Responsibility:

Our responsibility is to conduct the review engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and
Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA, Those standards require us
to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting whether we are aware of any material
maodifications that should be made to the financial statements for them to be in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. We believe that the results of our procedures provide a reasonable basis
for our conclusion.

Accountant’s Conclusion:

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying financial
statements in order for them to be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Substantial Doubt About the Entity's Ability to Continue as a Going Concern:

As discussed in Mote 1, specific circumstances raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern in the foreseeable future. The provided financial statements have not been adjusted for potential requirements in
case the Company cannot continue its operations. Management's plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note

Rashellee Herrera | CPACISA CIACFE CCAE | #ACS2042
On behalf of RNB Capital LLC

Sunrise, FL
October 4, 2024



VAST THERARPEUTICS, INC.

BALANCE SHEETS
&s of December 31,
2023 2022
ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash 5 98,317 72,331

Accounts Receivable 141,320

Prepaid Expenses 13,157 1,985
Total Current Assets 252,834 74,316
Non-Current Assets:

Fixed Assets, net 242,454 427946

Intangible Assets, net 43825917 46,194 885

Fight of Use Asset 19,933

Affiliates Loans Raceivable 207,524 202,474
Total Non-Current Assets 44,275,895 46,845,238
TOTAL ASSETS S 44,528,729 46,919,554
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Fayable 4 396,350 213,887

Short Term Lease Liability 20,362

Other Current Liability 1,410,648 2.497
Total Current Liabilities 1,806,998 236,746
Non=Current Liability:

Affiliates Loans Payable 9958976 6822479
Total Non-Current Liability 89,958,976 6,822,479
TOTAL LIABILITIES 11,765,974 7.089.225
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common Stock 3.613 3.613

Preferred Stock 252 252

Additional Paid-In Capital 61,826,789 61,387,605

Retained Earnings (29,067,899) (21,531,141)
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 32,762,755 39860329
TOTAL LIABILITIES AMND EQUITY < 44528729 (5 46,919,554

See Accompanying Motes to these Unaudited Financial Statements

Page | 4



VAST THERARPEUTICS, INC.

INCOME STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31,
2023 2022

Revenue S 737,317 |S -

Cost of Goods Sold
Gross Profit 737,317 -
Operating Expenses:

Management Fee Expense 1,037,920 1,016,385

Research and Development Expenses 4,298,067 3,345,227

General and Administrative Expenses Bl4 665 422,101
Total Operating Expenses 6,150,652 4,783,713
Total Loss from Operations (5,413,335) (4,783,713)
Other (Income) Expense:

Interest Expense [49a) (Z283]

Miscellaneous Expense (13, 280]) -

Qther Income 454,520 -
Total Other (Income) /Expense 440,744 [283)
Losses Before Income Taxes, Depreciation and Amaortization (4,972,591) (4,783,996)

Amortization Expense 2,368,968 1,184,484

Depreciation Expense 195,199 388,261
MNet Loss 5 (7,536,758) [5 (6,326,741)

See Accompanying Motes to these Unaudited Financial Statements
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VAST THERAPEUTICS, INC.
STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common Stock

Preferred Stock

Additional Paid-1n

Retained Earnings

Total Sharehalders'

# of Shares S Amount # of Shares S Amount Capital (Deficit) Equity
Beginning balance at 1/1/22 248787105 2488 2,515,000 (S 252 |5 14,008,300 |5 (15, 204.400) 11,193.360)
Issuance of Commaon Stock 11,254,007 1.125 - - 47,379,305 - 47,380,430
Met loss = = = - = 0,326.741) ie,326,/41)
Ending balance at 12/31/22 326,132,717 3,613 2,515,000 252 61,387,605 (21,531,141) 39,860,329
Stock Based Compensation Expense - - - - 439,184 - 439,184
Met loss - - - - - (7,536,758) (7,536,758)
Ending balance at 12/31/23 36,132,717 |5 3,613 2,515,000 [$ 252 |5 61,826,789 |5 (29,067 ,899) 32,762,755

See Accompanying Notes to these Unaudited Financial Statements
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VAST THERAPEUTICS, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,

2023 2022

CASH, BEGINNING OF PERIOD 723315 519,243
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Met Loss (7.536,758) 6,326.741)
Adjustments to reconcile Met Loss to Net Cash Provided by / {Used in) operations:

Amaortization Expanse 2,368,968 1.184 484

Dapraeciation Expensea 195,199 358261

Stock Options Expense 439,184
Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts Receivable 11412209 -

Frepaid Expenses (11,212] 11915

Right of Use Asset 19933 [19.8933)

Imtercompany Balances, net 3,131,447 4,283,930

Accounts Payables and Accrued Liabilities 1,590,614 48,101

Lease Liability (20,362) 20,362
Total Adjustments to reconcile Net Loss to Net Cash Provided by / (Used in) operations 7672451 5888120
Met Cash Provided by / (Used in) operations: 35,693 (439,621)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchasze of Fixed Assets (9,707) (8.290)
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (9,707} (8,290)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY

Options Exercised - 1,000
Net Cash provided by Financing Activity - 1,000-

Met increase (decrease] in cash 25,986 426911)
CASH, END OF PERIOD 598,317 572,331

Significant Non-Cash Transaction

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company issued Common Stock to KNOWBiIo, LLC in exchange

for sublicensed patents valued at $47,380,430.

See Accompanying Motes to these Unaudited Financial Statements
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Vast Therapeutics, Inc.
Motes to the Unaudited Financial Statements

MOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AMD BUSINESS OPERATIONS

Vast Therapeutics, Inc {“the Company”) was formed in Delaware on April §, 2017, The Company plans to earn revenue through licensing or
acquisition of medications created through its proprietary portfolio of Mitric Oxide releasing pro-drugs. The Company's headgquarters is in
Morrisville, Morth Carolina. The Company's customer base of global pharmaceutical companies will be located throughout the world.

The Comparny will conduct a crowdfunding campaign under regulation CF in 2024 to raise operating capital and fund essential research and
development activities.

The Company's operations are funded by its parent, KNOW Bio, LLC ("KNOWBio™).

- . f Credit Ris)

The Company's financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit sk primarily consist of its cash and cash equivalents. The
Company places its cash and cash equivalents with financial institutions of high credit worthiness. The Company's management plans to

assess the financial strength and credit worthiness of any parties to which it extends funds, and as such, it believes that any associated
credit risk exposures are limited.

The Company is still in its clinical stage, thus, all revenues are from a grant that it received from East Carolina University exposing the
Company's revenues to severe near-term impact.

The accompanying balance sheets have been prepared on a going concern basis, which means that the entity expects to continue its
operations and meet its abligations in the normal course of business during the next twelve months. Conditions and events creating the
doubt include the fact that the Company has commenced principal operations and has incurred losses in the two most recent years and
expects to continue to generate Llosses. The Company's management has evaluated this condition and has plans to raise capital as necessary
to meet its capital requirements. While KNOWRERIa, LLC provides financial support through funding and management of its oparations, there
is no guarantee of the Company's success. Considering these factors, there is substantial doubt about the company's ability to continue as a
going cencern. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Rasis of P .

The Company's financial statements are prepared in accordance with US. generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAPT). The
Company's fiscal year ends on December 31. The Company has no interest in variable interest entities.

Use of Est | 2 i

In preparing these unaudited financial statements in conformity with US GAAP, the Company’s management makes estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and Liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and Liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported expenses during the reporting period.

Making estimates requires management o exercise significant judgment, i is at least reasonably possible that the estimate of the effect of a
condition, situation or set of circumstances that existed at the date of the financial statements, which management considered in formulating
its estimate, could change in the near term due to one or more future confirming events, Accordingly, the actual results could differ
sigrficantly from those estimates,
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Vast Therapeutics, Inc.
Motes to the Unaudited Financial Statements

Eair Val  Ei Al

FASE Accounting Standards Codification [ASC) B20 "Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures” establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy,
which prioritizes the inputs in measuring fair value. The hierarchy prioritizes the inputs into three levels based on the extent to which inputs
used in measuring fair value are chservable in the market,

These tiers include:
Level 1: Observable inputs such as quoted prices [unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or Labilities.

Level 2; Inputs ather than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices
for similar assets or liabilities in active markets and queted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active,

Level 3: Unobservable inputs in which Little or no market data exists, therefore developed using estimates and assumptions developed by us,
which reflect those that a market participant would use.

The Company's material fair value estimates include compensation expense and fair value of its intangible assets, sublicenses, which were
acquired in exchange for stocks,

Lash and Cash Equivalents

The Comparny considers all shoert-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.
The Company had 598,317 and 572,331 in cash as of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively.

Accounts Becejvable

Trade receivables due from customers are uncollateralized customer obligations due under normal trade termis. Trade recevables are stated
at the amount billed to the customer. Payments of trade recevables are allocated to the specific invoices identified on the customer's
remittance advice or, if unspecified, are applied to the earliest unpaid invoices. Payments are generally collected upfront, but some of the
merchants that products are sold through have a delay between collecting from the customer and sending to the Company,

The Company estimates an allowance for doubtful accounts based upon an evaluation of the current status of receivables, historical
experience, and other factors as necessary. It is reasonably possible that the Company’s estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts will
change.

The Company had $141,320 and $0 accounts receivable as of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 from grant receivables.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Expenditures for renewals and improvements that significantly add to the productive capacity
or extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense. When equipment is
retired or sold, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts and the resultant gain or loss is reflected in
income, Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method, based on useful lives of the assets,

The Company reviews the carrying value of property and equipment for impairment whenever events and circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated future cash flows expected to result from its use and eventual
disposition. In cases where undiscounted expected future cash flows ara less than the carrying value, an impairment loss is recognized equal
to an amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value of assets. The factors considered by management in performing this
assessment include current operating results, trends and prospects, the manner in which the property is used, and the effects of
ohsolescence, demand, competition, and other economic factors, Based on this assessment there was no impairment for December 31, 2023,
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Vast Therapeutics, Inc.
Motes to the Unaudited Financial Statements

A summary of the Company's property and egquipment is below.

Froperty Type Useful Life in "I"E!EI’!] 2023 2022

Furniture & Fixtures 5 5 5,393 |5 6,508
IT Equipment 3 33,013 33,013
Lab Equipment 5 1,189 436 1,186,721
Manufacturing Equipment 5 6,992 -
HPLC Asset 5 99,404 99,404
Less Accumulated Depraciation (1,001,784) (897.700)
Fixed Assets, Nat 5242454 427,946

Eevenue Recognition

The Company plans to recognizes revenue from the sale of products and services in accordance with ASC 606, "Revenue Recognition”
following the five steps procedure:

Step 1: Identify the contract({s) with customers

step 20 ldentify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to performance obligations

Step b Recognize revenue when or as performance abligations are satisfied

The Company plans to generate revenues by creating medication through its proprietary portfolio of Nitric Oxide releasing pro-drugs. The
Company's payments are generally on credit after the products have been delivered. The Company’s primary performance obligation is to
deliver the products to customers, Bevenue is recognized at the time of shipment net of estimated returns.

The Company is still in the clinical trial stage of its products and the revenue earned in 2023 was from a grant it received.

Management Fee

Itis a fee paid to the parent company [Know Big LLC) for managing the subsidiary. See Mote 3.

Besearch and Development Expense

Since the Company is still in the clinical stage, it spent a significant amount of resources on product research and development. This includes
the salaries and related expenses of employees and contracters who have worked on R&D projects, equipment and supplies, and preclinical
SEMVICES,

- Land Admin .

General and administrative expenses consist of payroll and related expenses for amployvees. It also includes other miscellaneous expensas
necessary in running the business.

Amortization Expense

The sublicense iz pericdically amortized for a period of 20 vears.
Equity Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock options issued to emplovees under A5C 718 [Stock Compensation). Under ASC 718, share-based
compensation cost to emplovees is measured at the grant date, based on the estimated fair value of the award, and is recognized as an item
of expense ratably over the employee's requisite vesting period. The Company has elected early adoption of A5 2018-07, which permits
measurament of stock options at their intrinsic value, instead of thair fair value. &n option' 5 intrinsic value is defined as the amount by which
the fair value of the underlying stock exceeds the exercise price of an option. In certain cases, this means that option compensation granted
by the Company may have an intrinsic value of $0.
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Vast Therapeutics, Inc.
Motes to the Unaudited Financial Statements

The Company measures compensation expense for its non-employee stock-based compensation under ASC 505 (Equity). The fair value of
the option issued or committed to be issued is used to measure the transaction, as this i more reliable than the fair value of the services
recamved, The fair valua 1s measured at the value of the Company's commaon stock on the date that the commitment for performance by the
counterparty has been reached or the counterparty’s performance is complete, The fair value of the eguity instrument is charged directly to
expense and credited to additional paid- in capital.

There is not a viable market for the Companys common stock to determine its fair value, therefore management is reguired to estimate the
fair value to be utilized in the determining stock-based compensation costs, In estimating the fair value, management uses the net asset
value method in determining its stocks fair value, Considerable management judgment is nacessary to estimate the fair value. Accordingly,
actual results could vary significantly from management’s estimates, Stock based compensation expenses amounting to $439,184 and 50
were recognized in 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Summary of Options Outstanding

Total Options Weighted Average Fair Value Per
Share

Total options outstanding, lanuary 1, 2022 3543548 |5
Grarmted 2,340,000 1049
Exercized
Expired/canceled (226,666)

Total options outstanding, December 31, 206232 5,656,882 2.63
Granted 1,170,000 1.07
Exgreaged
Expiredicanceled -

Total options outstanding, December 31, 2023 6,826,882 |5 2.11

Summary of Mon-wested Options

Total Options ‘Woeighted Average Fair Value Per
Share

Mon-vested options, lanuary 1, 2022 2755048 |5
Granted 2,340,000 1.00
Wirsted 11,641,360
Forfeited (246,667

Mon-vested options, December 31, 2022 3,207,031 1.49
Gramted 1,170,000 107
Westad (1,280,B49) 282
Forfieited -

Mon-vested options, December 31, 2023 3,096,182 (S 111

locome Taxes

The Comparny is subject to corporate income and state income taxes in the state it does business. We account for income taxes under the
asset and liability method, which requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and lLiabilities for the expected future tax consequences of
events that have been included in the financial statements. The Company's primary tax jurisdictions are the United States and Delaware,

The Company has filed its 2022 taxes. t has not yvet filed its tax returns for 2023 and is in the process of doing so.
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Vast Therapeutics, Inc.
Motes to the Unaudited Financial Statements

Becent Accounting Pronouncements
The FASE issues Accounting Standards Updates (450Us) to amend the authoritative literature in ASC, There have been a number of ASLs to

date that amend the original text of ASC. Management believes that those issued to date either (i) provide supplemental guidance, (i) are
technical corrections, (i) are not applicable to us or [iv) are not expected to have a significant impact on our financial statements.

MOTE 3 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company follows ASC 850, "Related Party Disclosures,” for the identification of related parties and disclosure of related party
transactions.

Summary of Related Party Relationships and Balances as of December 31, 2023:

Entity Relationship Receivable Fayable
KMOWRBio, LLC Parent Company 5 - & 9,168,211
KE Besources Affiliate, wholly owned by KMOWREBio, LLC 182,652 740,765
Emit3io, Inc, Affiliate, majority owned by KNOWEBio, LLC 18,732 50,000
Rewvian Affiliate, majority owned by KNOWBio, LLC 5.050 -
Diabetic Health Affiliate, majority owned by KNOWEBio, LLC 1,080 -

Total 5207524 $9,958,976

Summary of Related Party Relationships and Balances as of December 31, 20232:

Entity Relationship Receivable Fayable
KMOWRBio, LLC Parent Company 5 - B 6,202,572
KB Resources Affiliate, wholly owned by KNOWBio, LLC 182.652 609,208
EmitBig, Inc, Affiliate, majority owned by KNOWEBio, LLC 18,732 -
Revian Affiliate, majority owned by KNOWBig, LLC - 10,700
Diabetic Health Affiliate, majority owned by KNOWBiIo, LLC 1,089 -

Total $202,474 46,822,479

The majority of the transactions entered with the related parties were for ongoing finandial support to the Company and Company expenses
that are being paid by related parties.

NOTE 4 - COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES, COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Company is not currently involved with or knows of any pending or threatening litigation against it or amy of its officers. Further, the
Company is currently complying with all relevant laws and regulations. The Company does not have any long-term commitments or
guaranteas,

NOTE 5 - LIABILITIES AND DEET

In 2023, the Company has accrued liability of 51,500,000 as an estimate for amounts due that have yet to be invoiced from preclinical work
performed by an unrelated third party.
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Vast Therapeutics, Inc.
Motes to the Unaudited Financial Statements
MOTE & - EQUITY

The Company has authorized 50,000,000 of common shares with a par value of $0.0001 per share. 36,132,717 shares were issued and
outstanding as of 2023 and 2022.

YWoting: Common stockholders are entitled to one vote per share,
Dividends: The holders of common stock are entitled to receive dividends when and if declared by the Board of Directors.

The Company has authorized 15,816,458 of preferred shares with a par value of 50.0001 per share. 2,615,000 shares were issued and
outstanding as of 2023 and 2022.

YWoting: Preferred shareholders have one vote for every commen share they could own if converted,

Dividends: The holders of the Series & preferred stock are entitled 1o receive dividends when and if declared by the Board of Directors. A5 of
December 31, 2023, no dividends had been declared.

Conversion; Each share of Series A Preferred Stock shall be convertible at the option of the holder thereof, at any time after the issuance of
such share, into fully paid and nonassessable shares of Common Stock. Series A Preferred Stock shall avtomatically be converted into shares
of Commaon Stock at the then applicable conversion rate upon the occurrence of a closing of a firmly underwritten public offering.

Liguidation: In the event of any liguidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, the holders of the Series A preferred stock are entitled
to recaive prior to, and in preference to, any distribution to the common stockholders.

NOTE 7 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated events subsequent to December 31, 2023 to assess the nead for potential recognition or disclosure in this
report. Such events were evaluated through October 4, 2024, the date these financial statements were available to be issued.

On March 5, 2024, Food and Drug Administration (FDA) approved the Company's' Investigational Mew Drug [IND) application allowing the
Company to proceed the investigational drug in human subjects with agreed upon protocels and in alignment with general FOA guidance for
industry.
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GET A PIECE OF VAST THERAPEUTICS

The Future of Respiratory Medicine

Vast Therapeutics is a clinical-stage life sciences company focused on improving the lives of
patients with chronic respiratory diseases. We recently received FDA clearance to begin VAST
Phase 1 clinical trials for our lead product candidate, ALX1. The Company is still in the Therapeutics
clinical trial stage of its products and revenue earned in 2023 was from a grant it received.

Show less A Breakthroughb
in Respiratory
Medicine

This Reg CF offering 15 made available through StartEngine
Primary, LLC. This investment is speculative, illiquid, and
involves a high degree of risk, including the possible loss of your

entire iInvestment.

OVERVIEW ABOUT TERMS DISCUSSION INVESTING FAQS

MIN INVEST @ VALUATION
$468 $49.85M

REASONS TO INVEST

Targeting Inflammation and Infection: ALX1 aims to address
-i}E) inflammation and infection with a dual-action approach that
seeks to target two key contributors to lung decline.

Addressing Unmet Needs: ALX1 is designed to address unmet
v) needs in chronic lung disease, with the potential to contribute
to the $90B global respiratory therapeutics market.



Experienced Team: Our team brings over 120 years of
combined drug development experience, including
involvement in 20 FDA-approved NDAs, which we believe
provides valuable insights for advancing ALX1.*

*Past FDA approvals achieved by our management team or their previous ventures do not imply or guarantee that

the current company's drug candidates or products will receive FDA approval or regulatory clearance. Each

product or drug candidate undergoes a unique and independent regulatory review process, and SUCccess in prior

instances does not correlate to the likelihood of approval for our products. This investment involves significant risk,

and lnvestors shouwld not rely on past FOA approvals as indicative of future regulatory outcomes.

TEAM

Nate Stasko « Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Stasko is an experienced life-science professional and inventor named on over 100
international patent filings, which have contributed to the development of two FDA-
regulated therapies, though prior results do not guarantee similar outcomes for future
products. Previously Dr. Stasko served as President & CEO of Novan, Inc. He has also
served as a Principal Investigator on 11 federally funded projects.

Read Less

Paul Bruinenberg = Chief Medical Officer

Dr. Bruinenberg has over 30 years' experience in the biotechnology industry and a
wealth of respiratory medicine experience researching diseases like cystic fibrosis
(CF), non-CF bronchiectasis (NCFB), tuberculosis (TB) and non-tuberculosis
mycobacteria (NTM). His career includes development of several inhaled therapies
including the approval of Pulmozyme® as the first mucolytic for Cystic Fibrosis.
Read Less

Stan Hollenbach » Vice President of Translational Science

Stan Hollenbach has over 30 years of experience in biotechnology industry, entirely
focused on activities required to support FDA approval. He leads the evaluation of the
safety and efficacy profile of new therapeutic agents in multiple large and small animal
species. Seven of the programs he has worked on have reached new drug approval
status.

Read Less



John Simons = Vice President of Product Development

John Simons is an accomplished, quality-oriented product development scientist with
a history of achievement working on drugs delivered via inhalation. His efforts have
seen 5 products come to market and he is passionate about improving operational and
process efficiencies to ensure drug products are developed which meet international
regulatory standards and business objectives.

Read Less

| Show Less

THE PITCH

A Revolutionary Approach to Lung Health




WHY

Vast Therapeutics

We offer an innovative solution
developed by a seasoned drug
‘ management team with extensive
‘ experience in drug development,
including expertise in and outside
the field of nitric oxide.

- Major Pharma companies are
Ty | | actively seeking to expand
| . | product offerings.

. ALX1 candidate:

Dual mechanism:
anti-inflammatory & antimicrobial

Avoids the problem of antibiotic
resistance

I|\

“__ —

Potential for enhanced safety
compared to current drugs

Chronic lung diseases lead to a harmful cycle of inflammation and infection. This can result in trouble
breathing, frequent hospital stays, and sadly, even death. In the U.S. alone, over 100,000 people die



every year from chronic lung disease. At Vast Therapeutics, our mission is to develop innovative

therapies that address the root causes of these debilitating conditions, offering hope for a brighter future.

Vast Therapeutics is a pioneering biotechnology company dedicated to transforming the lives of patients
with chronic respiratory diseases like Cystic Fibrosis. We're developing a new therapy called ALX1, a
dual-action inhaled treatment designed to fight drug-resistant infections and improve the quality of life
of patients living with chronic respiratory diseases. This innovative technology delivers nitric oxide to the

lungs leveraging the healing powers of this natural molecule to combat inflammation and infection.

Vast Therapeutics is backed by a strong team of experienced scientists and clinicians who are passionate
about developing life-changing treatments. Our team brings 120+ years of drug development
experience, including leadership roles in 20 FDA-approved New Drug Applications (NDAs).* With our
proprietary technology and a commitment to patient-centric care, we believe we are well-positioned to
address a significant unmet medical need and make a lasting impact on the lives of millions of patients

worldwide.

*Past FOA approvals achieved by our management feam or their previous ventures do not imply or guarantee that the current company’s drug candidates or
products will recelve FDA approval or regulatory clearance. Each product or drug candidate undergoes a unigue and independent regulatory review process, and
success in prior instances does hol correlate to the likelthood of approval for our products. This investment invelves signlficant risk, and investors should not rely

an past FOA approvals as indicative of fufure regulatory oufcomes,



Technology Platform

ALX1

The Product

Nitric Oxide NO-Prodrug Patients Inhale

Vast has developed a patented process to stabilize
Nitric Oxide in liquid form for inhalation.

THE PROBLEM & OUR SOLUTION

Breathe Easier with ALX1



The Problem
500,000,000

People worldwide suffer from chronic lung disease

Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease
(COPD)

Asthma

Interstitial Lung Disease

Pulmonary
Hypertension

Bronchiectasis

Cystic
Fibrosis




Our initial efforts are focused on patients whose lungs are colonized with the life-threatening bacteria
Pseudomaonas aeruginosa (“Pseudomonas”). It is now well established that when Cystic Fibrosis and
Mon-Cystic Fibrosis Bronchiectasis patients are colonized with Pseudomonas, it leads to higher rates of
hospitalization and mortality. Cough, excessive mucous production, and difficulty breathing become part
of everyday life. The heavy use of antibiotics to treat these diseases has led to toxicities observed with
chronic use and the development of antibiotic resistance—where even the most potent of agents are

rendered ineffective over time.

This creates an opportunity to improve and extend life for thousands of people living with Pseudomonas.

Our lead product candidate, ALX1, is a dual-action inhaled treatment designed to disrupt the vicious
cycle of inflammation and infection. ALX1 utilizes nitric oxide, stabilized in liquid form, to kill
Pseudomonas and other antibiotic-resistant bacteria. A fine mist is delivered daily to the lungs via a

hand-held, portable inhalation device similar to an inhaler.

Vast is creating an easy-to-use solution to a complex problem. By targeting the underlying biology of

these diseases, we aim to:

* Reduce Hospitalization Rates: We feel our technology has shown promising results in preclinical
studies, demonstrating the potential to decrease the frequency of hospitalizations from infectious
bacteria in the lungs.

* Improve Lung Function: By addressing the root causes of inflammation and infection, ALX1 may
help restore lung function.

+« Enhance Patient Outcomes: Our approach aims to develop therapeutic options for patients who
have limited treatment alternatives or are not responding to current therapies, subject to ongoing
clinical validation.

* Avoid Harmful Side Effects: Chronic use of antibiotic and steroid therapies has significant side

effects on the immune system and vital organs.

THE MARKET & OUR TRACTION



Delivering Innovative Therapies

THE MARKET

$90+ Billion

Global Respiratory Therapeutics Market

[ =
sOLTNCE

ALX1 is now ready for Phase 1 human trials. Success in this trial will open exploration of our product for
people suffering from various lung diseases. These underserved populations need new FDA-approved
therapies. When fully developed, ALX1 may address several unmet medical needs in the $90B global

respiratory therapeutics market, depending on successful clinical outcomes and regulatory approvals.

We believe Vast Therapeutics has made significant strides thus far, securing $29 million in funding to
date, including a $14 million investment from the Japanese pharmaceutical company Shionogi & Co.,
Ltd, demonstrating strong industry confidence in our potential.

Our IND approval from the FDA is a critical milestone, allowing us to begin clinical trials to explore the
potential of addressing unmet needs in the market. With our innovative approach, strong market
potential, and experienced team, we are dedicated to advancing innovative therapies for patients in need

and aspire to make significant contributions to the field of respiratory medicine.



KEY

Achievements

FDA IND Approval

Our IND application, supported by extensive

preclinical data, enables the safe exploration
of ALX1 in humans.

Traction & Funding

Secured a $14 million Series A financing from
the Japanese pharmaceutical company
Shionogi & Co., Ltd. and additional financial
support from KNOW Bio, LLC. We've also
received grants from National Institutes of
Health, the Cystic Fibrosis Foundation, and
the State of North Carolina.

Global Patent Portfolio

Vast leverages >100 issued, pending and
licensed patents globally

Industry Recognition

TI"'E:I"' LW et N o VAP~ TAI PP I'"J"ilﬁ.i'"l'ﬂfl L o E‘I"\ﬁlll.i""'-!l-'ﬁ



111D y©dl, VWE VWCIT DTITLLTU add> a J1ivvweadc
ABOU -I-Company at the Respiratory Innovation
Summit and presented at the Respiratory

oAt Drug Delivery Conference.
615 Da is Dr. Suite 800 View Site [

Morrisville, NC 27560

Vast The uti:Stlﬁaﬂge 5lgr&ard&li&k| ii1pving the lives of

patients with chronic respiratory diseases. We recently received FDA clearance to begin Phase 1
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of its products ana revenue earned in 2023 was from a,% ant it received.

evelopment experience and has been
involved in 20 New Drug Approvals.

TERMS

Vast Therapeutics

Past FDA approvals achieved by our management team or their previous venfures do not imply or guarantee that the current company's drug candidates or

QH-E‘J'HH k2éite FDA approval or regulatory clearance, Each product or drug candidate undergoes a unique and independent regulatory review process, and

ﬁm.ﬂ approvals as indicative of future regulatory oulcomes, $4g-35 M

DEADLINE ® FUNDING GOAL ®

Feb. 18, 2025 at 7:59 AM UTC $124k - $1.24M

WHY INVEST

éeﬁg%kthrough In Respiratory Medicine
N 1 1ENT © OFFERING TYPE

$4ﬁB Equity

1AX INVESTMENT @ SHARES OFFERED

$1,235,000 Series B Preferred Stock

MIN NUMBER OF SHARES OFFERED

119,230

MAX NUMBER OF SHARES OFFERED

1,187,500

Maximum Number of Shares Offered subject to adjustment for bonus shares

SEC Recent Filing =



Off

VAST

Therapeutics
Fi

Invest in 2 A Revolutionary
Approach to Lung Health

To

Ca : $98,317

AcCi

Short-Term Debt

Long-Term Debt $9,958,976 $6,822,479

JDH‘EE%%tUEhﬁrégﬁe%t'CS on its mlssm%%q,ejafg life-altering medicines E)d patients with chronic lung
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of care for the treatment of Cystic Fibrosis and other diseases in the $90B respiratory therapeutics
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millions of patients worldwide.
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Risks s

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this offering unless
you can afford to lose your entire investment. In making an investment decision, investors must
rely on their own examination of the issuer and the terms of the offering, including the merits and
risks involved. These securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state
securities commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have not passed
upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document. The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
does not pass upon the merits of any securities offered or the terms of the offering, nor does it
pass upon the accuracy or completeness of any offering document or literature. These securities



are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission has not made an independent determination that these securities are exempt from
registration.

Investment Incentives
Loyalty Bonus | 20% Bonus Shares

As you are a valued stakeholder in KNOW Bio, LLC or a designated friend/family member of the Vast Therapeutics team, you are eligible
for 20% additional bonus shares on top of your investment.

Time-B r

Early Bird 1

Invest $5,000+ within the first week and receive 5% bonus shares.
Early Bird 2

Invest 510,000+ within the first week and receive 10% bonus shares.
Early Bird 3

Invest $15,000+ within the first month and receive 10% bonus shares.
Early Bird 4

Invest $50,000+ within the first month and receive 15% bonus shares.

Amount-Based Perks

Tier1

Invest $1,000 and be eligible to receive a quarterly newsletter from the CEOQ tailored to the StartEngine shareholder base and 3%
bonus shares

Tier 2
Invest $25,000 and receive a private virtual Q&A with the CEQ and 10% bonus shares
Tier3

Invest $100,000 and receive a VIP invitation for an onsite tour of the research lab, lunch and Q&A with the Vast management team,
and 15% bonus shares.

The 10% StartEngine Venture Club Bonus

Vast Therapeutics, Inc. will offer 10% additional bonus shares for all investments that are committed by investors that are eligible for
the StartEngine Venture Club.

This means eligible StartEngine shareholders will receive a 10% bonus for any shares they purchase in this offering. For example, if
you buy 100 shares of Series B Preferred Stock at $1.04/ share, you will receive 110 shares of Series B Preferred Stock, meaning you'll
own 110 shares for $104. Fractional shares will not be distributed and share bonuses will be determined by rounding down to the
nearest whole share,

This 10% Bonus is only valid during the investor’s eligibility period. Investors eligible for this bonus will also have priority if they are on
a waitlist to invest and the company surpasses its maximum funding goal. They will have the first opportunity to invest should room in
the offering become available if prior investments are canceled or fail.

Investors will receive the highest single bonus they are eligible for among the bonuses based on the amount invested and the time of
offering elapsed (if any). Eligible investors will also receive the Venture Club bonus[,]/[[and] the Loyalty Bonus[,]/[and the Audience
Bonus]] in addition to the aforementioned bonus.,



JOIN THE DISCUSSION

What's on your mind?

0y 2500

Ice breaker! What brought you
to this investment?

HOW INVESTING WORKS

Cancel anytime before 48 hours before a rolling close or the offering end date.

SIGN SUBMIT FUNDS IN FUNDS
UP ORDER TRANSIT RECEIVED

FUNDS
INVESTED



We want you to succeed and get the most out of your money by offering rewards and
memberships!

Your info is your info. We take pride in keeping it that way!

Invest in over 200 start-ups and collectibles!

FAQS

How much can I invest? )

With Regulation A+, a non-accredited investor can only invest a maximum of 10% of their annual
income or 10% of their net worth per year, whichever is greater. There are no restrictions for
accredited investors.

With Regulation Crowdfunding, non-accredited investors with an annual income or net worth less
than $124,000, are limited to invest a maximum of 5% of the greater of those two amounts. For
those with an annual income and net worth greater than $124,000, he/she is limited to investing
10% of the greater of the two amounts.

When will I receive my shares? ~

At the close of an offering, all investors whose funds have “cleared” by this time will be included
in the disbursement. At this time, each investor will receive an email from StartEngine with their
Countersigned Subscription Agreement, which will serve as their proof of purchase moving
forward.

Please keep in mind that a company can conduct a series of “closes” or withdrawals of funds
throughout the duration of the campaign. If you are included in that withdrawal period, you will
be emailed your countersigned subscription agreement and proof of purchase immediately
following that withdrawal.



What will the return on my investment be? ~

StartEngine assists companies in raising capital, and once the offering is closed, we are no longer
involved with whether the company chooses to list shares on a secondary market, or what occurs
thereafter. Therefore, StartEngine has no control or insight into your investment after the close of
the live offering. In addition, we are not permitted to provide financial advice. You may want to
contact a financial professional to discuss possible investment outcomes.

Can I cancel my investment? ~

For Regulation Crowdfunding, investors are able to cancel their investment at any point
throughout the campaign up until 48 hours before the closing of the offering. Note: If the
company does a rolling close, they will post an update to their current investors, giving them the
opportunity to cancel during this timeframe. If you do not cancel within this 5-day timeframe,
your funds will be invested in the company, and you will no longer be able to cancel the
investment. If your funds show as ‘Invested’ on your account dashboard, your investment can no
longer be canceled.

For Regulation A+, StartEngine allows for a four-hour cancelation period. Once the four-hour
window has passed, it is up to each company to set their own cancelation policy. You may find
the company’s cancelation policy in the company's offering circular.

Once your investment is canceled, there is a 10-day clearing period (from the date your
investment was submitted). After your funds have cleared the bank, you will receive your refund
within 10 business days.

Refunds that are made through ACH payments can take up to 10 business days to clear.
Unfortunately, we are at the mercy of the bank, but we will do everything we can to get you your
refund as soon as possible. However, every investment needs to go through the clearing process
in order to get sent back to the account associated with the investment.

What is the difference between Regulation Crowdfunding and Regulation A+? ~

Both Title III (Regulation Crowdfunding) and Title IV (Reg A+) help entrepreneurs crowdfund
capital investments from unaccredited and accredited investors. The differences between these
regulations are related to the investor limitations, the differing amounts of money companies are
permitted to raise, and differing disclosure and filing requirements. To learn more about
Regulation Crowdfunding, click here, and for Regulation A+, click here.

More FAQs ->
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Important Message
IN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION, INVESTORS MUST RELY ON THEIR OWN EXAMINATION OF THE ISSUER AND THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING, INCLUDING THE MERITS AND RISKS INVOLVED. INVESTMENTS ON
STARTENGINE ARE SPECULATIVE, ILLIQUID, AND INVOLVE A HIGH DEGREE OF RISK, INCLUDING THE POSSIBLE LOSS OF YOUR ENTIRE INVESTMENT.

www. StartEngine.com is a website owned and operated by StartEngine Crowdfunding, Inc. ("StartEngine”), which is neither a registered broker-dealer, investment advisor nor funding portal.

Unless indicated otherwise with respect to a particular issuer, all securities-related activity is conducted by regulated affiliates of StartEngine: StartEngine Capital LLZ, a funding portal registered here with the US Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) and here as a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA), or StartEngineg Primary LLC (*SE Primary™), a broker-dealer registerad with the SEC and FIMRA / SIPC. You can review the
background of our broker-dealer and our investment professionals on FIMRA's BrokerCheck here, StartEngine Secondary 15 an alternative trading system (ATS) regulated by the SEC and operated by SE Primary, SE Primary is a

member of SIPC and explanatory brochures are available upon request by contacting SIPC at (202) 371-B300.
StartEngine tacilitates three types of primary offerings;

1) Regulation A offerings (JOBS Act Title IV; known as Regulation A+}, which are offered to non-accredited and accredited investors alike, These offerings are made through StartEngine Primary, LLC (unless otherwise indicated). 2)
Regulation D ofternngs (Rule 506(c)), which are ofterad only to accradited invastors. Thase ottenngs are made through StantEngine Pnmary, LLC. 3) Regulation Crowdiunding otferings (JOBS Act Title ITI), which are otfered to non

accredited and accredited investors alike. These offerings are made through StartEngine Capital, LLC. Some of these offerings are opan to the general public, however there are important differences and risks.

Any securities offered on this website have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state securities commission or regulatory authority. StartEngine and its affiliates do not provide any investment advice or
recommendation and do not provide any legal or tax advice concerning any securities. All securities listed on this site are being offered by, and all information included on this site is the responsibility of, the applicable issuer of such
securities. StartEngine does not verity the adequacy, accuracy, or completeness of any information, Neither StatEngine nor any of its officers, directors, agents, and employees makes any warranty, express or implied, of any kind

whatsoever related to the adequacy, accuracy, or completenass of any information on this site or the use of information on this site.



Investing in private company securities is not suitable tor all investors. An investment in private company securities is highly speculative and invelves a high degree of risk, It should only be considered a long-term investment. You
must be prepared to withstand a total loss of yvour investrment. Private company securities are also highly illiguid, and there is no guarantee that a market will develop for such securities. Each investment also carries its own specific
risks, and you should complete yvour cwn independent due diligence regarding the investment. This includes obtaining additicnal information about the company, epiniens, financial projections, and legal or other investment advice.,
Accordingly, investing in private company securities is appropriate anly for those investors whao can tolerate a high degrees of risk and do not require a liquid investment, See additional general disclosures here.

By accessing this site and any pages on this site, you agree to be bound by our Terms of use and Privacy Policy, as may be amended from time to time without notice or liability.

Canadian Investors
Investment opportunities posted and accessible through the site will not be offered to Canadian resident investors, Potential investors are strongly advised to consult their legal, tax and financial advisors before investing, The
securities offered on this site are not offerad in jurisdictions where public solicitation for offerings is not permitted; it is solely your responsibility to comply with the laws and regulations of your country of residence.

California Investors Only - Do Not Sell My Personal Information (800-317-2200). StartEngine does not sell personal information, For all customer inquiries, please write to contact@startengine.com,
StartEngine Marketplace
StartEngine Marketplace (“SE Marketplace®) is a website operated by StartEngine Primary, LLC (“SE Primary"), a broker-dealer that is registered with the 5EC and a member of FINRA and the SIPC.

StartEngine Secondary ("SE Secondary™) is our investor trading platform. SE Secondary is an SEC-registered Alternative Trading System ("ATS") operated by SE Primary that matches orders for buyers and sellers of securities. It
allows investors to trade shares purchased through Regulation A+, Regulation Crowdfunding, or Regulation D for companies who have engaged StartEngine Secure LLC as their transfer agent. The term “Rapid,” when used in relation
to transactions on S5E Marketplace, specifically refers to transactions that are facilitated on 5E Secondary, This is because, unlike with trades on the StartEngine Bulletin Board [(SE BE™), trades on 5E Secondary are executed the
mement that they are matched,

StartEngine Bulletin Board ("SE BBE™} is a bulletin board platform on which users can indicate to each other their interest to buy or sell shares of private companies that previously executed Reg CF or Reg A offerings not necessarily
through SE Primary. As a bulletin board platform, SE BB provides a wvenue for investors to access information about such private company offerings and connect with potential sellers. All investment opportunities on SE BB are based
on indicated interest from sellers and will need to be confirmed. Even if parties express mutual interest to enter into a trade on 5E BB, a trade will not immediately result because execution is subject to additional contingencies,
including among others, effecting of the transfer of the shares from the potential seller to the potential buyer by the issuer andfor transfer agent. SE BB is distinct and separate from SE Secondary. SE Secondary facilitates the
trading of securities by matching orders between buyers and sellers and facilitating executions of trades on the platform. By contrast, under SE BB, SE Primary assists with the facilitation of a potential resulting trade off platform
including, by among other things, approaching the issuer and other necessary parties in relation to the potential transaction. The term "Extended”, when used in relation to transactions on 5E Marketplace denotes that these
transactions are conducted via SE BE, and that these transactions may invalve lenger processing times compared to 5E Secendary for the above-stated reasons,

Even if a security is qualified to be displayed on 5E Marketplace, there is no guarantee an active trading market for the securities will ever develop, or if developed, be maintained. You should assume that you may not be able to
liguidate your investment for some time or be able to pledge these shares as collateral.

The availability of company infermation does not indicate that the company has endorsed, supports, or ctherwise participates with StartEngine, It also does not constitute an endorsement, solicitation or recommendation by
startEngine. StartEngine does not (1) make any recommendations or otherwise advise on the merits or advisability of a particular investment or transaction, (2) assist in the determination of the fair value of any security or
investrment, or {3) provide legal, tax, or transactional advisory services.



EXHIBITDTO FOEM C
VIDEQ TRANSCRIPT
Breathing is fundamental.

Imagine being so breathless that you're not able to walk to vour mailbox, chase yvour kids or grandkids in the yard, or take that dream
vacation you've been planning for years.

This is the harsh reality for 500M people around the world suffering from chronic lung diseases.
At Vast Therapeutics, we are pioneering a breakthrough medicine that could give millions of patients their life back.
In the U.S. alone, over 100,000 people die every year from chronic lung disease.

These are life-long battles, being fought with short-term remedies, with significant side effects on the immune system and our vital
Organs.

We believe Vast has a better solution.

We're using a natural chemical in the body that regulates blood flow and is a first-line defender against invading microbes. It's called
Nitric Oxide.

Recent breakthroughs show that nitric oxide at the right dose, Nitric Oxide can both dampen inflammation and eliminate pathogens
restoring lung function.

We believe targeting Nitric Oxide delivery to the lungs can be very effective in treating chronic lung diseases like COPD, Bronchiectasis,
Pulmonary Hypertension, and Cystic Fibrosis.

Vast has developed specialized equipment and a patented process to stabilize Nitric Oxide in liquid form, deliverable by a hand-held,
portable inhalation device similar to an inhaler.

Our lungs have incredibly small airways to transport oxygen, and it's a major technical obstacle to create these microscopic water droplets
that you inhale that are small enough to get into each of those airways.

We're created an easy to use solution to a complex problem.

Our team has over 120 vears of combined drug development experience, including doctors specializing in Nitric Oxide, and veterans of 20
FDA drug approval programs.

Our work has been recognized with $14M strategic investment from the global pharma power Shionogi, plus funding from the Cystic
Fibrosis Foundation.

Why invest now? We're on the cusp of Phase 1 clinical trials. We believe success here could open the floodgates of potential exploration
of our product for many lung diseases.

We aim to shape the future of the $90B respiratory therapeutics industry.
This is your chance to be a part of a company seeking to transform healtheare innovation.

We invite you to join us on this journey and invest in Vast Therapeutics today.



STARTENGINE SUBSCRIPTION PROCESS (Exhibit E)

Platform Compensation

e As compensation for the services provided by StartEngine Capital or StartEngine Primary,
as identified in the Offering Statement filed on the SEC EDGAR filing system (the
“Intermediary™), the issuer is required to pay to Intermediary a fee consisting of a
5.5-13% (five and one-half to thirteen) commission based on the dollar amount of
securities sold in the Offering and paid upon disbursement of funds from escrow at the
time of closing. The commission is paid in cash and in securities of the Issuer identical to
those offered to the public in the Offering at the sole discretion of the Intermediary.
Additionally, the issuer must reimburse certain expenses related to the Offering. The
securities 1ssued to the Intermediary, if any, will be of the same class and have the same
terms, conditions, and rights as the securities being offered and sold by the issuer on
StartEngine’s platform.

e As compensation for the services provided by StartEngine, investors are also required to
pay the Intermediary a fee consisting of a 0-3.5% (zero to three and a half percent) service
fee based on the dollar amount of securities purchased in each investment.

Information Regarding Length of Time of Offering

e Investment Cancellations: Investors will have up to 48 hours prior to the end of the
offering period to change their minds and cancel their investment commitments for any
reason. Once within 48 hours of ending, investors will not be able to cancel for any
reason, even if they make a commitment during this period.

e Material Changes: Material changes to an offering mclude but are not limited to: A
change in minimum offering amount, change in security price, change in management,
material change to financial information, etc. If an issuer makes a material change to the
offering terms or other information disclosed, including a change to the offering deadline,
investors will be given five business days to reconfirm their investment commitment. If
investors do not reconfirm, their investment will be canceled and the funds will be
returned.

e The Intermediary will notify investors by email when the target offering amount has hit
25%, 50%, and 100% of the funding goal. If the issuer hits its goal early, the issuer can
create a new target deadline at least 5 business days out. Investors will be notified of the



new target deadline via email and will then have the opportunity to cancel up to 48 hours
before the new deadline.

e Oversubscriptions: We require all issuers to accept oversubscriptions. This may not be
possible if: 1) it vaults an issuer into a different category for financial statement
requirements (and they do not have the requisite financial statements); or 2) they reach
$5M in investments. In the event of an oversubscription, shares will be allocated at the
discretion of the issuer, with priority given to StartEngine Venture Club members.

e If the sum of the investment commitments does not equal or exceed the target offering
amount at the offering deadline, no securities will be sold in the offering, investment
commitments will be canceled and committed funds will be returned.

e If a StartEngine issuer reaches its target offering amount prior to the deadline, it may
conduct an initial closing of the offering early if they provide notice of the new offering
deadline at least five business days prior to the new offering deadline (absent a material
change that would require an extension of the offering and reconfirmation of the
investment commitment). StartEngine will notify investors when the issuer meets its
target offering amount. Thereafter, the issuer may conduct additional closings until the
offering deadline.

Minmimum and Maximum Investment Amounts

e [n order to invest, commit to an investment or communicate on our platform, users must
open an account on StartEngine and provide certam personal and non-personal
information including information related to income, net worth, and other investments.

e [nvestor Limitations: There are no investment limits for investing in crowdfunding
offerings for accredited investors. Non-accredited investors are limited in how much they
can invest in all crowdfunding offerings during any 12-month period. The limitation on
how much they can invest depends on their net worth (excluding the wvalue of their
primary residence) and annual income. If either their annual income or net worth 1s less
than $124,000, then during any 12-month period, they can invest either $2,500 or 5% of
their annual income or net worth, whichever 1s greater. If both their annual income and net
worth are equal to or more than $124,000, then during any 12-month period, they can
invest up to 10% of annual income or net worth, whichever is greater, but their
investments cannot exceed $124,000.



